
Shamong, NJ 08088     September 1, 2009 
 
The Shamong Township Committee held a regular meeting on the above date at the 
Municipal Building. 
 
Mayor Sean Gray called the meeting to order at approximately 8:00 p.m.  
 
The Clerk stated please be advised that proper notice of this meeting has been given in 
compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act in the following manner.  Written notice has 
been faxed to the Burlington County Times, published in the Central Record and posted on 
the official website and bulletin board of Shamong Township. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call and)   Mr. Sean Gray     P 
     Absentees)   Mr. Martin Mozitis    P 
 Noted)   Mr. Christopher Norman   P 
    Mr. James Schroeder    P 
    Mr. Jonathon Shevelew   P 
 
Mayor Gray opened the meeting to the public; there were no comments from the public, so 
the meeting was closed to the public. 
 

On motion of Committeeman Shevelew, seconded by Committeeman Schroeder, it was 

moved to approve the minutes of August 4, 2009 as submitted.  A roll call vote showed 

all members present voting yes except Committeeman Gray who abstained. 

 

Mayor Gray called on Cheryl Bergailo of Taylor Design Group, Inc. who prepared the 1st 
draft of the Open Space and Recreation Plan for Shamong Township.  She reviewed the plan 
with the Committee explaining an Open Space and Recreation Plan (OSRP) is defined by the 
Green Acres Program section as “a local governments’s vision of open space and recreation.  
It should establish a philosophical and practical justification for the protection and 
preservation of open space and recreation opportunities.  An OSPR provides a framework for 
implementation.”  Also, she stated this plan, which has been prepared in accordance with the 
guidelines and requirements of the New Jersey Green Acres Program, consists of the guiding 
concepts of the Shamong Township Open Space and Recreation Plan; an Inventory of 
existing open space and recreation facilities; a recreational and open space needs analysis to 
determine the amount of land required; a resource assessment of potential acquisitions and an 
action plan focused on conservation of existing open land available for preservation.  She 
stated the goals and policies are to acquire and develop a system of open space and recreation 
lands that provides for the recreational needs of residents in a fiscally responsible manner, 
preserves open space and allows for a stabilization of the municipal tax base.  The OSRP will 
also provide a method to acquire land in compliance with the State’s highest level of 
Payment-in-Lieu of Taxes and acquire land as needed for recreational purposes.  Mr. Heinold 
explained if the Township Committee refers this plan to the Planning Board it will be a 
public document.  Ms. Bergailo explained that Green Acres requires two public hearings 
before final adoption.  Based on concerns expressed by Committeeman Mozitis, Deputy 
Mayor Shevelew recommended the Committee discuss this plan in executive session and if 



they agree on the plan than, possibly, refer it to the Planning Board.  Everyone was in 
agreement and at this time Mayor Gray thanked Ms. Gergailo for her time. 
 

On motion of Committeeman Schroeder, seconded by Committeeman Norman, it was 

moved to approve the release of a Maintenance Bond for Atsion Road, Sections 10 and 

11.  A roll call vote showed all members present voting yes. 

 

Mr. Arango explained when the Administrator, Committeeman Shevelew, and himself met 
with the Pinelands Commission and spoke with Dr. Brady he indicated that an archeological 
study may need to be done at the Stony Creek Fields before approval would be given to place 
soccer fields on the property.  Mr. Arango explained he was told that the land had previously 
been used for soil extraction so he went to the County and obtained aerial photographs of the 
area from 1965 to 1995 which showed confirmed this.  Mr. Arango will be meeting with Dr. 
Brady on September 3rd to go over his findings and show there was soil extraction on this 
property.  He will report his findings to the Township Committee. 
 
The Administrator reported to the Committee on the Final 2009 Ewan Site Five Year Review 
Report.    She reported that the hydraulic control appears to be maintained through out the 
extraction/recharge area and the contaminant plume continues to shrink, approximately 104 
pounds of contaminants have been removed via treatment of ground water totaling 388 
pounds of contaminants being removed the first five years, off site well sampling continues 
on 8 residential wells showing no impact to these wells, in 2008 a 2 ½ year groundwater 
quality monitoring was performed and confirmed groundwater quality continues to improve, 
technical assessment shows the remedy is functioning as intended and groundwater 
contamination is being controlled, another five year review will be completed in 2014 unless 
groundwater objectives are achieved earlier than a final close out report or deletion of the site 
occurs. 
 
The Administrator reported the Township Tax maps have been digitized/colorized and are 
available on the township web site.  She stated Charles Burgin from the fire department put a 
grid system on the map and listed the street names on the bottom which was very helpful.  
The zoning map is also in color and easier to read and understand.   
 
The Administrator reported that Parker, McCay is recommending additional ADR 
assessment fees of $1,500 to be paid to Bressler Amery and Ross for the BEMS case and in 
addition to that $2,000 for BEMS mediation through Parker McCay.  On motion of 

Committeeman Schroeder, seconded by Committeeman Mozitis, it was moved to 

approve ADR and Assessment Fees associated with the BEMS case.  A roll call vote 

showed Committeemen Schroeder, Mozitis and Gray voting yes, Committeeman 

Shevelew voting no, and Committeeman Norman abstaining. 

 

Mayor Gray recognized JoAnne Epps as being in the audience and then read a 

Proclamation recognizing JoAnne A. Epps as a Girl Scouts Take the Lead Hall of Fame 

Recipient.  The Proclamation will be part of the September 1, 2009 minutes.  Mayor 

Gray congratulated JoAnne Epps and thanked her for coming to the meeting. 

 

On motion of Committeeman Norman, seconded by Committeeman Shevelew, it was 

moved to approve the “Constitution Week Proclamation.”  A roll call vote showed all 

members present voting yes. 



 

The Administrator explained Ordinance 2009-004 on refuse containers and dumpsters stating 
it is a requirement of the Storm Water Management, Tier A Permit.  She said they have been 
reviewed and are in compliance with the Pinelands Commission.  On motion of 

Committeeman Mozitis, seconded by Committeeman Shevelew, it was moved to 

approve Ordinance 2009-004 Stormwater management requirement for refuse 

containers and dumpsters on first reading.  A roll call vote showed all members present 

voting yes. 

 

The Administrator explained Ordinance 2009-005 on private storm drain inlet retrofitting 
stating our Township has been doing this for several years with any kind of street projects.   

On motion of Committeeman Shevelew, seconded by Committeeman Schroeder, it was 

moved to approve Ordinance 2009-005 Private storm drain inlet retrofitting on first 

reading.  A roll call vote showed all members present voting yes. 

 

On motion of Committeeman Shevelew, seconded by Committeeman Schroeder, it was 

moved to approve the attached Resolution 2009R-64 for refund of overpayment of 

taxes.    A roll call vote showed all members present voting yes except Committeeman 

Mozitis who abstained. 

 

On motion of Committeeman Schroeder, seconded by Committeeman Mozitis, it was 

moved to approve the attached bill list.  A roll call vote showed all members present 

voting yes. 

 

The engineer, Mr. Arango, reported he is currently preparing the final design for NJDOT 
Trust Fund Application for 2009 and it should be completed in a couple of weeks.  He 
reported they performed the field inspection on Thursday, August 27, 2009 for the Indian 
Mills Lake Dam and have begun preparing the Formal Inspection Report.  He stated a letter 
was submitted recommending the release of Maintenance Bond #6468762 in the amount of 
$194,496.75.  He reported that on August 18, 2009 he received a request to perform the final 
grading and drainage inspection for 883 Atsion Road, block 51, lot 8 and for 25 Red Onion 
Road, block 10 lot 25.  The plans for both properties are currently being prepared by the 
applicants.  Also, he reported he has a meeting with Ralph Ford on Thursday to discuss the 
Cranberry Acres septic system mounds and what is going to be done. 
 
The solicitor, Mr. Heinold, reported he needs to speak to the Committee in executive session 
in reference to the Silver Lake Drive properties, as well as, property acquisition.  He reported 
the Tax Repayment Agreement authorized by the governing body is no longer necessary as 
the taxpayer’s mortgage company paid the taxes owed in the interim. 
 
The Administrator reported on the following items; she thanked the Indian Mills School 
Janitorial Staff for waxing our floors, the Public Works Road crew assisted the Indian Mills 
Memorial School with installing an Archeological Dig Site, a letter of appreciation was 
received from Charles and Jane Kratz relative to tree-trimming and associated services of all 
township employees and officials, a letter of appreciation was received from IMAA relative 
to the 2009 baseball and softball season recognizing the Public Works Department for their 
efforts related to field maintenance, the Township has been utilizing a Community Service 
volunteer to clean the interior of the municipal building and, therefore, saving money, 
however, we will need to hire a replacement for this service before the end of the year which 



was included in the 2009 budget, Bob Perri our Building Code and Construction Official has 
resigned effective September 30th and the position has been advertised.  Mr. Mozitis 
suggested we contact the county to see if they have anyone else available for community 
service that we could use in the Municipal Building.  Mr. Shevelew asked if the drainage 
problem that Mrs. Keith mentioned at last month’s meeting had been taken care of and the 
Administrator said the Public Works Department was asked to look at it.   
 
Mayor Gray opened the meeting to the public and Mrs. Mary Anne Reinhart asked how 
much money had been spent to date on the BEMS and the solicitor replied he believed 
approximately $7,500.00.  Mrs. Reinhart asked what the cost was for Taylor Design to 
prepare the Open Space Plan and the solicitor said he believed approximately $16,000.00.  
Mrs. Reinhart questioned why the cost was so high since the company already had a list of 
the lands through the tax assessor, Jay Renwick.  Mayor Gray explained the Committee felt 
the township needed a professional land planner to prepare this information for legal 
purposes.  The solicitor explained initially when Mr. Renwick developed his plan the goal 
was the pilot issue trying to achieve the increase in reimbursement to the pilot payment under 
the Preservation Program.  This plan expands beyond that being a much more traditional 
comprehensive open space plan.  Mrs. Reinhart asked what the Committee’s priority is with 
this plan.  Is it to reach the goal of 60% to get more tax dollars or purchase land for more 
recreational use?  Mayor Gray stated the goals have not been prioritized and there would 
probably be five different answers at this time.  Mrs. Reinhart asked the Committee to 
prioritize by purchasing Redman’s Hall as a Historic Building as mentioned in the plan.  Mrs. 
Reinhart asked if the township looked into getting carts for trash disposal and the 
Administrator said the cost per cart is $58 but Garden State Removal did not get back to her 
on whether they would pass the savings on to the resident.  Mrs. Reinhart said reports show 
that the towns using the carts are generating more paper and cardboard which takes it out of 
the waste system and dollars are up on recycling now.  Committeeman Shevelew asked if 
there was a savings because it would cost the township approximately $100,000 to do this 
and Mrs. Reinhart said she will have the county send him a report.  Mrs. Reinhart stated she 
received some calls on the new farmland assessments and referred them to the township tax 
assessor.  She did not feel it was handled properly and recommended the township send a 
letter to the land owners explaining why it was done.  Mayor Gray said he had no problem 
sending a letter out to the residents.  Mrs. Reinhart asked what the Committee was doing with 
the speed limit on Forked Neck Road and the Administrator explained we did send a letter to 
have it lowered along with other roads in the township and reported most of them have been 
denied.  Mrs. Reinhart referred back to the Open Space issue asking at what percentage the 
township was to achieve their 60% goal and the solicitor said approximately 58%.  Mrs. 
Reinhart asked if Resolution 2009R-64 was an overpayment of taxes or an adjustment by the 
tax assessor due to an appeal.  Committeeman Shevelew answered he believed it was through 
an appeal.    Mrs. Reinhart asked how much money was in the Open Space Tax Fund and the 
solicitor said just shy of $150,000 and by the end of the year approximately $200,000.  Mrs. 
Reinhart asked if the Open Space Plan could be put on the website so people could review it 
before coming to a meeting.  Mayor Gray thanked Mrs. Reinhart for attending the meeting 
and explained the committee did discuss at the workshop the issues around the farmland 
assessment realizing the amount of taxes assessed could be a big impact on the owners of the 
properties.  He also wanted the residents to understand the increase in taxes did not come 
from the township, it was strictly the State.  Mayor Gray also explained the committee had 
asked the county to delay the reevaluation for as long as possible because of the impact it 
may have on some of the residents giving the economy status at this time.  Mrs. Reinhart 



explained the State initiated the farmland assessment increase and passed it on to the county 
but the assessors are the ones that should assess each year.  Committeeman Shevelew 
explained it is his understanding that the assessor has a formula that he must use.  Mrs. 
Reinhart stated she has a letter and will fax it to the Administrator since it explains why the 
State took these actions and the deficiencies of a lot of the assessors.    Mr. Knight wanted to 
know how this works with farmland that the State has restricted, as far as building rights, 
because the value should be different on a piece of ground that is buildable and one that is 
not buildable.  Committeeman Mozitis said the way Mr. Renwick explained it, it is on what 
you produce not market value.  Committeeman Schroeder believes that part of the assessment 
had to do with one of the candidates last year from Hunterdon County claiming farmland 
assessment but was not farming his property.  He said Salem County also had to reassess.  
Mrs. King said she can understand what brought this about and some people are taking 
advantage.  Mrs. King doesn’t feel it should be judged on income because that can fluctuate 
from year to year.  Mrs. Reinhart reported that in the new bill it is raising the gross sales from 
$500.00 to $1,000.00 minimum on the first 5 acres of land.  She feels it should stay at 
$500.00.  Mrs. King reported she has been trying to get on line with her computer and is 
having difficulty because there is no service where she lives.  Mrs. Reinhart wanted it clear 
that she was not against the Open Space Plan but she was questioning the cost of preparing it.  
Mrs. Reinhart stated she believed 2 farms in the township would be participating in the 
Farmland Preservation Plan.  There being no further comments from the public, the public 
portion of the meeting was closed. 
 
Mayor Gray stated the Committee was going into executive session to discuss land 
acquisition and potential litigation.  If any action is taken, it will be taken when the regular 
committee meeting is reconvened.  On motion of Committeeman Schroeder, seconded by 

Committeeman Shevelew, the Township Committee went into executive session. 

 
The Committee returned from executive session, no action was taken, there was no further 
business, and on motion of Committeeman Shevelew, seconded by Committeeman 

Norman, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

Susan D. Onorato 

Municipal Clerk 


